
 
 

 

1 
Governance & Member Support Officer: Jean Sharp (01277 312655) 

Brentwood Borough Council, Town Hall, Ingrave Road, Brentwood, Essex CM15 8AY 
�01277 312 500  8  www.brentwood.gov.uk   

 

 
Agenda 
 

Ordinary Council 
Wednesday, 10 June 2015 at 7.00 pm 

Council Chamber - Town Hall 
 

Membership (Quorum – 10) 
 

Cllrs Reed (Chair), Mrs Hones (Vice-Chair), Aspinell, Barrell, Barrett, Carter, Chilvers, Clark, 
Cloke, Mrs Cohen, Mrs Coe, Mrs Davies, Faragher, Mrs Henwood, Hirst, Hossack, Mrs Hubbard, 
Keeble, Kendall, Kerslake, McCheyne, Mrs McKinlay, Morrissey, Mrs Murphy, Mynott, Newberry, 
Parker, Poppy, Ms Rowlands, Russell, Ms Sanders, Mrs Slade, Sleep, Mrs Squirrell, Tee, Trump 
and Wiles 
 
Members are respectfully summoned to attend the above meeting to transact the business set out 
below. 
 

 
Agenda 
Item 
 

 
Item 
 

 
Wards(s) 
Affected 
 

 
Page No 

1.   Apologies for Absence 
 
 

 
 

 

2.   Declarations of Interest 
 
 

 
 

 

3.   Mayors Announcements 
 
 

 
 

 

4.   Minutes of the previous meeting and Annual Council 
 
 

 
 

5 - 54 

5.   Members Allowances 2015/16 
 
 

All Wards 
 

55 - 62 

6.   Notice of Motion 
One notice of motion has been received. 
 

All Wards 
 

63 - 64 

7.   Budget 2015/16 Amendment Report All Wards 65 - 72 

Public Document Pack



 
2 
 

 
 

 

8.   Committees - Appointment of Substitute for Cllr Keeble 
 
 

All Wards 
 

73 - 74 

9.   Urgent Business 
An item of business may only be considered where the Chair is 
of the opinion that, by reason of special circumstances, which 
shall be specified in the Minutes, the item should be considered 
as a matter of urgency. 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Head of Paid Service 
 
Town Hall 
Brentwood, Essex 
26.05.2015 

 
 



 
3 

 

Information for Members 

Substitutes 

The names of substitutes shall be announced at the start of the meeting by the Chair and the substitution shall cease 
at the end of the meeting. 
 
Where substitution is permitted, substitutes for quasi judicial/regulatory committees must be drawn from Members 
who have received training in quasi- judicial/regulatory decision making. If a casual vacancy occurs on a quasi 
judicial/regulatory committee it will not be filled until the nominated member has been trained. 
 

Rights to Attend and Speak 

Any Members may attend any Committee to which these procedure rules apply. 
 
A Member who is not a member of the Committee may speak at the meeting.  The Member may speak at the Chair’s 
discretion, it being the expectation that a Member will be allowed to speak on a ward matter.   
 
Members requiring further information, or with specific questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer 
at least two working days before the meeting.   
 

Point of Order/ Personal explanation/ Point of Information 

Point of Order 
A member may raise a point of order 
at any time. The Mayor will hear 
them immediately. A point of order 
may only relate to an alleged breach 
of these Procedure Rules or the law. 
The Member must indicate the rule 
or law and the way in which they 
consider it has been broken. The 
ruling of the Mayor on the point of 
order will be final. 

Personal Explanation 
A member may make a personal 
explanation at any time. A personal 
explanation must relate to some 
material part of an earlier speech by 
the member which may appear to 
have been misunderstood in the 
present debate, or outside of the 
meeting.  The ruling of the Mayor on 
the admissibility of a personal 
explanation will be final. 
 

Point of Information or 
clarification 
A point of information or clarification 
must relate to the matter being 
debated. If a Member wishes to raise 
a point of information, he/she must 
first seek the permission of the 
Mayor. The Member must specify the 
nature of the information he/she 
wishes to provide and its importance 
to the current debate, If the Mayor 
gives his/her permission, the 
Member will give the additional 
information succinctly. Points of 
Information or clarification should be 
used in exceptional circumstances 
and should not be used to interrupt 
other speakers or to make a further 
speech when he/she has already 
spoken during the debate. The ruling 
of the Mayor on the admissibility of a 
point of information or clarification 
will be final. 
 



 
4 

 

Information for Members of the Public 

� Access to Information and Meetings 

You have the right to attend all meetings of the Council 
and Committees.  You also have the right to see the 
agenda, which will be published no later than 5 working 
days before the meeting, and minutes once they are 
published.  Dates of the meetings are available at 
www.brentwood.gov.uk. 

� Webcasts 

All of the Council’s meetings are webcast, except where 
it is necessary for the items of business to be considered 
in private session (please see below).   
 
If you are seated in the public area of the Council 
Chamber, it is likely that your image will be captured by 
the recording cameras and this will result in your image 
becoming part of the broadcast.  This may infringe your 
Human Rights and if you wish to avoid this, you can sit 
in the upper public gallery of the Council Chamber. 
 

� Guidelines on filming, photography, recording and use of social media at council and committee 
meetings 
The council welcomes the filming, photography, recording and use of social media at council and committee meetings 
as a means of reporting on its proceedings because it helps to make the council more transparent and accountable to 
its local communities. 
 
Where members of the public use a laptop, tablet device, smart phone or similar devices to make recordings, these 
devices must be set to ‘silent’ mode to avoid interrupting proceedings of the council or committee. 
 
If you wish to record the proceedings of a meeting and have any special requirements or are intending to bring in 
large equipment then please contact the Communications Team before the meeting. 
 
The use of flash photography or additional lighting may be allowed provided it has been discussed prior to the 
meeting and agreement reached to ensure that it will not disrupt proceedings. 
 
The Chair of the meeting may terminate or suspend filming, photography, recording and use of social media if any of 
these activities, in their opinion, are disrupting proceedings at the meeting. 
  

�Private Session 

Occasionally meetings will need to discuss some of its business in private.  This can only happen on a limited range 
of issues, which are set by law.  When a Committee does so, you will be asked to leave the meeting. 
 

 modern.gov app 
View upcoming public committee documents on your Apple or Android device with the free modern.gov app. 
 

�� Access 

There is wheelchair access to the Town Hall from the 
Main Entrance.  There is an induction loop in the Council 
Chamber.   

Ý  Evacuation Procedures 

Evacuate the building using the nearest available exit 
and congregate at the assembly point in the North Front 
Car Park. 

 



Agenda Item 4

Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



10 June 2015 
 
Annual Council 
 
Members Allowances 2015/16 
 

 

 
Report of:  Independent Remuneration Panel 

 
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 
This report is:  Public 
 
1. Executive Summary 

 
1.1 The Council operates a Members’ Allowances Scheme which is reviewed 

annually by the Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP). The IRP have 

reviewed the current scheme and have made recommendations for the 

2015/16 Municipal Year after reviewing the committee arrangements 

made at Annual Council on 20 May 2015.  

 

1.2 The Members’ Allowance Scheme is Part 6 of the Council’s Constitution 

and the Independent Remuneration Panel has recommended no change.  

 
 

2. Recommendation(s) 

 
2.1 That the report of the Independent Remuneration Panel be noted 

 

2.2 That the revised Members Allowances at Appendix A be agreed, 

being no more than £274,175.92. 

 
 
 

3. Introduction and Background 

 
3.1 The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 

require councils to establish an Independent Remuneration Panel. The 

Council cannot alter or update its existing Scheme of Members 

Allowances without first considering a report from its Independent 

Remuneration Panel.   

 

3.2 Local authority elected Members are entitled to receive allowances to 

compensate them for the role that they do and the responsibilities they 

assume on behalf of the communities they serve. A ‘Basic Allowance’ is 

paid to all Members of the authority to reflect the roles that they 

undertake. A ‘Special Responsibility Allowance’, is paid to those Members 

Agenda Item 5

Page 55



that have particular responsibilities within the Council’s constitutional 

arrangements.  

 

3.3 No additional subsistence or travel allowances are paid. However, Annual 

Council 2013 resolved that ‘reasonable expenses’ for external training and 

conferences be reimbursed, as required, and only with the advance 

agreement of the Chief Executive. 

 

3.4 The Independent Remuneration Panel 2015/16 comprised 

 

• Mr Michael Hawkins 

• Mr Noel Otley 

• Mr John Boylin 

 

3.5 The deliberations of the IRP were informed by: 

 

• The views of the Group Leaders (2014-15) and the Leader of the 

Council (2015) 

• The Council’s changes in Committee structure 2013, 2014 and 2015 

• Benchmarking information from Shire Districts in Essex and the 

‘CIPFA family group’ of authorities with similar characteristics to 

Brentwood 

• Desktop research 

• The recommended 2.2% increase for employees (effective 1 January 

2015 for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2016) provided by the 

terms and conditions of the National Joint Council for Local 

Government Services (NJC) 

• Previous reports and recommendations from the IRP 

 

4. Issue, Options and Analysis of Options 

 
4.1 The IRP were mindful of the function which Councillors perform in 

protecting and enhancing local democracy by providing representation on 

issues of local concern and ensuring that the Council remains 

accountable to the community which it serves. Accordingly, the IRP 

followed the same principles as in the previous three years: 

 

• the need for Councillors to come from a wide range of backgrounds 

• the necessity to ensure some recompense for the time and effort spent 

in serving the community whilst recognising that the work of Councillors 

should include a substantial voluntary contribution 

• recognition of the time and resource demands of training and 

development, as well as other activities; and  

Page 56



• whilst recognising that individual Members could choose not to take 

their allowance in whole or in part, the IRP were keen to ensure that the 

scheme should encourage and support local democracy by ensuring 

that personal financial constraints would not be a bar to office.  

 

4.2 Additional factors considered by the IRP in preparing its report to Annual 

Council 2015 included: 

 

• The potential impact on Local Authorities in Essex of proposals for 

devolution 

• Consideration of the Commercialisation of Council Services and 

proposals for a Local Authority Trading Company by the Asset and 

Enterprise Committee in September 2014 

• Budget pressures on the Council 

 
 

4.3 The options considered by the IRP included: 

 

 

Option Analysis 

That members allowances for 2015/16 

remain unchanged 

• Members allowances had increased 

by 1% in 2014/15. This was the first 

increase since 2011/12 

• New Committee arrangements had 

been adopted in 2013, 2014 and 

2015 

That members allowances for 2015/16 

be reduced 

• An overall reduction in the cost of 

Members Allowances of £8306.65 

had been agreed in 2013/14.  

That members allowances for 2015/16 

be increased 

• Governance arrangements had 

changed in 2013 and 2014 

• The IRP informed Officers that a 

1% increase in Members 

Allowances should be assumed 

within the Medium Term Financial 

Plan 

• The recommended 2.2 % increase 

for employees effective from 1 

January 2015 (for the period 1 April 

2014 – 31 March 2016) provided by 

the terms and conditions of the 

National Joint Council for Local 

Government Services (NJC) which 

equated to a 1% increase per year.  

 

Page 57



Option 1 was recommended i.e. remain unchanged. 

 

5. Reasons for Recommendation 

 
5.1 The Local Authorities (Members Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 

require that before Council can determine its Members Allowances for the 

forthcoming Municipal Year, it must consider a report from the 

Independent Remuneration Panel.  

 
6. Consultation 

 
6.1 The Independent Remuneration Panel held informal discussions with 

Officers in February and sought the views of Group Leaders in March 

2015. The Panel also heard from the Leader of the Council in late May 

2015. The Panel did not believe any further discussions were needed. 

 

7. References to Corporate Plan 

 
7.1 The priority area of A Modern Council provided for the Council to improve 

its governance arrangements leading to faster, more effective decision 

making. The IRP examined the changes to governance arrangements in 

preparation of its recommendations.  

 

8. Implications 

 
Financial Implications  
Name & Title: Christopher Leslie, Finance Director 
Tel & Email: 01277 312 542 christopher.leslie@brentwood.gov.uk   
 

8.1 The total cost of Members’ Allowances has reduced from the previous 

year resulting in a saving in 2015/16. 

 
Legal Implications  
Name & Title: Christopher Potter, Monitoring Officer and Head of 
Support Services 
Tel & Email: 01277 312 860 christopher.potter@brentwood.gov.uk  
 

8.2 The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 

(as amended) obliges the Council to have regard to the recommendations 

of the Independent Remuneration Panel which are required to be set out 

in a report to the Council. 

 

8.3 The Council may or may not decide to accept such recommendations, 

and a Member may elect in writing to the proper officer to forgo all or any 

part of their entitlement to allowances. 

 

Page 58



Other Implications (where significant) – i.e. Health and Safety, Asset 
Management, Equality and Diversity, Risk Management, Section 17 – 
Crime & Disorder, Sustainability, ICT. 
 

8.4 None 

 

9. Background Papers (include their location and identify whether any are 

exempt or protected by copyright) 

 
9.1 Annual reports of the Independent Remuneration Panel to Brentwood 

Borough Council 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 are publicly 

available at www.brentwood.gov.uk 

 
10. Appendices to this report 

 

• Appendix A – Schedule of proposed Members Allowances for  2015/16  

 
Report Author Contact Details: 
 
Name: Christopher Potter, Monitoring Officer and Head of Support Services 
Telephone: 01277 312860 
E-mail: christopher.potter@brentwood.gov.uk  
 

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



M
e
m

b
e
rs

 A
ll

o
w

a
n

c
e
s
 2

0
1
5
-1

6

N
u

m
b

e
r

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 A

ll
o

w
a

n
c

e
s

 

2
0

1
4

-1
5

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

2
0

1
5

-1
6

T
o

ta
l 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
O

n
ly

 O
n

e
 S

R
A

 

P
e

rm
it

te
d

T
o

ta
l 

A
ll

o
w

a
n

c
e

s
 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

B
a
s
ic

 A
llo

w
a
n
c
e

3
7

6
,0

1
0
.3

1
5
,9

5
0
.8

0
2
2
0
,1

7
9
.6

0
2
2
0
,1

7
9
.6

0

L
e
a
d
e
r

1
1
3
,2

1
7
.1

1
1
3
,0

8
6
.2

5
1
3
,0

8
6
.2

5
1
3
,0

8
6
.2

5

D
e
p
u
ty

 L
e
a
d
e
r

1
6
,3

8
0
.6

8
6
,3

1
7
.5

0
6
,3

1
7
.5

0
6
,3

1
7
.5

0

L
e
a
d
e
r 

o
f 

M
a
in

 O
p
p
o
s
it
io

n
1

5
,3

1
8
.7

5
5
,3

1
8
.7

5
5
,3

1
8
.7

5
5
,3

1
8
.7

5

L
e
a
d
e
r 

o
f 

M
in

o
ri
ty

 O
p
p
o
s
it
io

n
1

2
,6

5
8
.9

2
2
,6

5
8
.9

2
2
,6

5
8
.9

2
2
,6

5
8
.9

2

C
h
a
ir
 o

f 
A

u
d
it
, 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y 

a
n
d
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
1

3
,5

4
5
.8

3
3
,5

4
5
.8

3
3
,5

4
5
.8

3
3
,5

4
5
.8

3

C
h
a
ir
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

a
n
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
1

3
,5

4
5
.8

3
3
,5

4
5
.8

3
3
,5

4
5
.8

3
3
,5

4
5
.8

3

C
h
a
ir
 o

f 
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
1

3
,5

4
5
.8

3
3
,5

4
5
.8

3
3
,5

4
5
.8

3
3
,5

4
5
.8

3

C
h
a
ir
 o

f 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
1

3
,5

4
5
.8

3
3
,5

4
5
.8

3
3
,5

4
5
.8

3
3
,5

4
5
.8

3

C
h
a
ir
 o

f 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 L

ic
e
n
s
in

g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
1

3
,5

4
5
.8

3
3
,5

4
5
.8

3
3
,5

4
5
.8

3
3
,5

4
5
.8

3

C
h
a
ir
 o

f 
P

o
lic

y
, 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
e

1
3
,5

4
5
.8

3
3
,5

4
5
.8

3
3
,5

4
5
.8

3
 L

e
a
d
e

r 
o
f 

th
e

 C
o
u
n

c
il 

0
.0

0

V
ic

e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
A

u
d
it
, 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y 

a
n
d
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
1

9
6
7
.1

5
9
6
7
.1

5
9
6
7
.1

5
9
6
7
.1

5

V
ic

e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

a
n
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
1

9
6
7
.1

5
9
6
7
.1

5
9
6
7
.1

5
9
6
7
.1

5

V
ic

e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
1

9
6
7
.1

5
9
6
7
.1

5
9
6
7
.1

5
9
6
7
.1

5

V
ic

e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
1

9
6
7
.1

5
9
6
7
.1

5
9
6
7
.1

5
9
6
7
.1

5

V
ic

e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 L

ic
e
n
s
in

g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
1

9
6
7
.1

5
9
6
7
.1

5
9
6
7
.1

5
9
6
7
.1

5

V
ic

e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
P

o
lic

y
, 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
e

1
9
6
7
.1

5
9
6
7
.1

5
9
6
7
.1

5
 D

e
p
u

ty
 L

e
a
d
e

r 
o
f 

th
e

 

C
o
u
n

c
il 

0
.0

0

S
u

b
 t

o
ta

l
2
7
4
,6

3
8
.9

0
2
7
0
,1

2
5
.9

2

M
a
y
o
r

1
3
,3

3
3
.0

0
3
,3

0
0
.0

0
3
,3

0
0
.0

0
3
,3

0
0
.0

0

D
e
p
u
ty

 M
a
y
o
r

1
7
5
7
.5

0
7
5
0
.0

0
7
5
0
.0

0
7
5
0
.0

0

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

2
7
8
,6

8
8
.9

0
2
7
4
,1

7
5
.9

2

Appendix A

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
10 June 2015 
 
Ordinary Council 
 
Notices of Motion 
 

 

 
Report of:  Chris Potter  – Monitoring Officer and Head of Support 

Services 
 
Wards Affected: All  
 
This report is:  Public 
 
 
1. Executive Summary 

 
1.1 A notice of motion have been submitted in accordance with the Council’s 

procedure rules. 

 

1.2      Cllr Mrs McKinlay submitted the following motion: 

“That the budget decisions made by Council on 4th March 2015 be 
revisited notwithstanding that these decisions were made within the past 
six months, and that the Council be at liberty to consider what 
amendments may be appropriate and to make such budget decisions as it 
sees fit at this meeting held on 10th June 2015, having received a report 
from the Chief Finance Officer under Rule 3.7 of Part 4.1 of the Council 
Procedure Rules” 

1.3  The reason for the motion on notice is to enable the Council to have the 
option to reconsider the budget decisions made by Council on 4th March 
2015 and to make any budget decisions the Council decides it wishes to 
make. It is made under and in accordance with rule 8.3.17 of Part 4.1 of 
the Council Procedure Rules. 

   
Report Author Contact Details: 
 
Name:   Claire Hayden 
Telephone: 01277 312741 
E-mail:   claire.hayden@brentwood.gov.uk 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



 
10 June 2015 
 
Ordinary Council 
 
Budget 2015/16 Amendment Report 
 

 

 
Report of: Chris Leslie, Finance Director     
    

Wards Affected: All 

 
This report is:  Public 

 
1. Executive Summary 

 
1.1 On the 4 March 2015 Council approved the budget for 2015/16.  The budget 

included a contribution from the General Fund reserve of £362k.  
 

1.2 This report seeks approval for the budget amendments intended to set a 

balanced budget with out the need to drawdown from the General Fund reserve . 

 

 

2. Recommendation(s) 

 

2.1 To approve the revenue budget amendments in Appendix A. 

 

2.2 To approve the amendments to the capital programme at paragraph 5.1. 

 

 

3. Introduction and Background 

 

3.1 Included within the 2015/16 budget approved by Council was: 

• The sum of £164k for new developments; 
• The sum of £545k for anticipated savings, which remains unchanged; 
• The sum of £350k earmarked for the William Hunter Way development, which 
remains unchanged; 

• The sum of £362k to be taken from the General Fund reserve. 
 

3.2 A capital programme totalling £9.6m was also approved including £3.2m of new 

schemes.  Additionally £1m of capital receipts was earmarked for Warley 

Training Centre, which is reduced as stated in paragraph 5.1. 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 65



4. Revenue Budget Amendments 

4.1 The proposed budget amendments are detailed in Appendix A.  The table below 
summaries the impact of the amendments on the required drawdown from the 
General Fund reserve, originally approved by Council in March 2015. 
 

  2015/16 
£000 

2016/17 
£000 

2017/18 
£000 

General Fund Drawdown March 2015 362 543 829 

Budget Amendments (362) (358) (315) 

Revised General Fund Drawdown - 185 514 

 
 

4.2 The table shows that after the proposed budget amendments no drawdown from 
the General Fund reserve is required in 2015/16.  By 2017/18 there is a 
requirement to use £514k from the General Fund reserve down from an 
anticipated £829k. 
 

4.3 The remaining £514k budget gap will be closed through additional efficiency 
savings found through the organisation along with new income generation 
projects providing additional revenue sources for the Council. 

 
4.4 Council is requested to approve the revenue budget amendments detailed in 

Appendix A. 
 

4.5 As part of the budget amendments there is a £30k increase in HRA recharges.  
This amendment reduces the 2015/16 HRA surplus from £236k to £206k. 

 
 
5. Amendments to the Capital Programme 

 

5.1 Council is requested to approve the following amendments to the 2015/16 capital 

programme: 

 

• Removal of Old House Redevelopment - £1,080k; 
• Removal of capital receipts earmarked for Warley Training Centre and use 
these to reduced the borrowing requirement of the capital programme - 

£1,000k; 

• Addition of Improvements and Parking Scheme at Brentwood and Shenfield - 
£1,600k. 

 

5.2 These adjustments reduce the overall borrowing requirement of the capital 

programme by £480k.  This results in a £40k revenue saving in 2016/17. 

 

5.3 A revised capital programme is provided at Appendix B. 

 

Page 66



6. Reasons for Recommendation 

 

6.1 Revisions to the budget are part of a robust system of financial control and 

reflect the priorities of the new Council Administration following the local 

elections on the 7th May 2015. 

 

7. Implications 

 

Financial Implications  
Name & Title: Chris Leslie, Finance Director 
Tel & Email 01277 312542 / christopher.leslie@brentwood.gov.uk 
 

7.1 The financial implications are set out in the report. 

 

Legal Implications  
Name & Title: Chris Potter, Monitoring Officer 
Tel & Email 01277 312860 / christopher.potter@brentwood.gov.uk 
 

7.2 None. 

 

8. Appendices to this report 

 

Appendix A – Revenue Budget Amendments 
Appendix B – Revised Capital Programme 
 

 
Report Author Contact Details: 
 
Name: Chris Leslie, Finance Director 
Telephone: 01277 312542 
E-mail: christopher.leslie@brentwood.gov.uk 
 

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000 £000

Changes approved by Council in March 2015 362 182 285

Savings:

Revised management structure (105) - -

Revenue Impact of reversal of Old House/Warley TC 

decisions and addition of parking scheme

- (40) 40

Inflationary increase in Fees and Charges (excluding 

parking)

(15) - -

Removal of Borough Bulletin (2) - -

Reduction and streamlining of Members' Allowances (17) - -

Rebasing of Ward Budgets (12) - -

Rebasing of Community Fund Budget (10) - -

Removal of additional elections marketing (5) 5 -

Removal of cost of distributing free food bags - free 

supply will continue 

(3) - -

Revision of proposed apprenticeship funding to reflect 

resources available

(38) - -

Review of HRA recharges (30) - -

Removal of surplus pension contributions (92) - -

Unwinding of Single Status reserve (30) 30 -

Reductionin interest payments due to lower borrowing 

and interest rates.

(30) - 4

Reduction of Internal Audit budget in accordance with 

the agreed audit plan

(10) 10 -

Growth:

Street Inspector 35 - -

Project work on establishing a LATCO 2 (2) -

Proposed Budget Amendments (362) 3 44

In Year Deficit - 185 329

Opening Budget Gap - - 185

Closing Budget Gap - 185 514

Revenue Budget Amendments
Appendix A

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



2
0

1
5

/1
6

2
0

1
6

/1
7

2
0

1
7

/1
8

T
o

ta
l

C
a

p
it

a
l 

R
e

ce
ip

ts

B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
G

ra
n

ts
R

e
v

e
n

u
e

 

F
u

n
d

e
d

 

T
o

ta
l

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

H
R

A
 D

E
C

E
N

T
 H

O
M

E
S

 S
C

H
E

M
E

S
2

,9
8

0
   

   
   

 
3

,0
0

0
   

   
   

 
3

,0
0

0
   

   
   

 
8

,9
8

0
  
  
  
  
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

8
,9

8
0

   
   

   
 

8
,9

8
0

  
  
  
  
  

N
E

W
 H

O
M

E
S

 B
U

IL
D

 (
H

R
A

)
1

,5
5

5
   

   
   

 
2

,1
5

4
   

   
   

 
1

,5
5

5
   

   
   

 
5

,2
6

4
  
  
  
  
  

1
,5

7
9

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

3
,6

8
5

   
   

   
 

5
,2

6
4

  
  
  
  
  

T
O

W
N

 H
A

LL
 R

E
M

O
D

E
LL

IN
G

2
,7

8
1

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

2
,7

8
1

  
  
  
  
  

8
6

6
   

   
   

   
 

1
,9

1
5

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

2
,7

8
1

  
  
  
  
  

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S
 &

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 S
C

H
E

M
E

 A
T

 B
'W

O
O

D
 &

 S
H

E
N

F
IE

LD
1

,6
0

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
1

,6
0

0
  
  
  
  
  

1
,6

0
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

1
,6

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

U
P

G
R

A
D

E
 T

H
E

 M
U

LT
I 

S
T

O
R

E
Y

 C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
3

7
5

   
   

   
   

 
6

6
4

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

  
1

,0
3

9
  
  
  
  
  

3
7

5
   

   
   

   
 

6
6

4
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

1
,0

3
9

  
  
  
  
  

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
 G

R
A

N
T

2
8

0
   

   
   

   
 

2
8

0
   

   
   

   
 

2
8

0
   

   
   

   
 

8
4

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
6

0
   

   
   

   
 

3
2

0
   

   
   

   
 

3
6

0
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

8
4

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

V
E

H
IC

LE
 R

E
P

LA
C

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

2
0

0
   

   
   

   
 

1
5

0
   

   
   

   
 

1
5

0
   

   
   

   
 

5
0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
0

0
   

   
   

   
 

3
0

0
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

5
0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

IC
T

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

1
0

0
   

   
   

   
 

1
0

0
   

   
   

   
 

1
0

0
   

   
   

   
 

3
0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0

0
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

0
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

3
0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

P
LA

Y
 A

R
E

A
 R

E
F

U
R

B
IS

H
M

E
N

T
S

1
0

0
   

   
   

   
 

1
0

0
   

   
   

   
 

1
0

0
   

   
   

   
 

3
0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
2

9
1

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
3

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
C

E
N

E
 W

O
R

K
S

-
   

   
   

   
  

2
0

0
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

2
0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

2
0

0
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

2
0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

H
O

M
E

 R
E

P
A

IR
 A

S
S

IS
T

A
N

C
E

 G
R

A
N

T
S

3
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

3
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

3
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

9
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

4
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

9
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

B
R

E
N

T
W

O
O

D
 L

E
IS

U
R

E
 T

R
U

S
T

8
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

8
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

8
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
 R

E
F

U
R

B
IS

H
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 U
P

G
R

A
D

E
1

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
1

5
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

1
5

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

C
C

T
V

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

 U
P

G
R

A
D

E
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

  
1

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

F
O

LD
IN

G
 M

A
C

H
IN

E
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

2
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
o

ta
l

1
0

,1
1

1
  
  
  
  

6
,6

8
3

  
  
  
  
  

5
,2

1
5

  
  
  
  
  

2
2

,0
0

9
  
  
  
  

5
,0

2
9

  
  
  
  
  

3
,9

1
5

  
  
  
  
  

3
6

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
2

,7
0

5
  
  
  
  

2
2

,0
0

9
  
  
  
  

R
e

v
is

e
d

 C
a

p
it

a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
F

u
n

d
in

g
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n

Appendix B

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
10 June 2015 
 
Ordinary Council 
 
Committees – Appointment of Substitute for Cllr Keeble 
 

 

 
Report of:  Christopher Potter, Monitoring Officer and Head of Support Services. 
 
Wards Affected: All 
 
This report is:  Public 
 
1. Executive Summary 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to note and to give effect to the wishes of Cllr 

Roger Keeble as to the appointment of his nominated substitute.  

 
 

2. Recommendation(s) 

 
2.1 That Cllr Liz Cohen be appointed to substitute for Cllr Roger Keeble 

 

 

3. Introduction and Background 

 
3.1 Annual Council at its meeting on 20 May 2015 decided to introduce 

greater control over the use of substitution.  

 

3.2 Cllr Roger Keeble is not a member of any political group and hence is a 

non-aligned member. He has expressed his wish for Cllr Liz Cohen to act 

as his nominated substitute. 

 

4. Issue, Options and Analysis of Options 

 
4.1 The Council is required to give effect to Cllr Roger Keeble’s wishes as 

regards his specified substitute. 

 

5. Reasons for Recommendation 

 
5.1 The reason for the recommendation is to give effect to Cllr Roger Keeble’s 

wishes as regards his specified substitute. 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 73



6. Consultation 

 
6.1 Cllr Roger Keeble has consulted with Cllr Liz Cohen which has agreed to 

act as his nominated substitute. 

 

7. References to Corporate Plan 

 
7.1 The Modern Council priority within the Council’s Corporate Plan sets out 

how the Council will be transformed between 2014 -2016. This includes 

improving our governance arrangements.  

 

8. Implications 

 
Financial Implications  
Name & Title: Chris Leslie, Financial Services Manager (S151 Officer) 
Tel & Email 01277 312542 / chris.leslie@brentwood.gov.uk 
 

8.1 None directly arising from the report itself. 

 

Legal Implications  
Name & Title: Christopher Potter, Monitoring Officer and Head of Support 
Services 
Tel & Email 01277 312860 / christopher.potter@brentwood.gov.uk 
 

8.2 The report sets out the legal implications. 

 

Other Implications (where significant) – i.e. Health and Safety, Asset 
Management, Equality and Diversity, Risk Management, Section 17 – 
Crime & Disorder, Sustainability, ICT. 
 

8.3 The Council’s Constitution plays an important part in respect of the above 

matters as it forms the basis of corporate governance.  

 

9. Background Papers (include their location and identify whether any are 

exempt or protected by copyright) 

 
9.1 None.  

 

10. Appendices to this report 

 

• None 

 
Report Author Contact Details: 
 
Name: Christopher Potter 
Telephone: 01277 312860 
E-mail: christopher.potter@brentwood.gov.uk 

Page 74



Members Interests 
 
Members of the Council must declare any pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests and the 
nature of the interest at the beginning of an agenda item and that, on declaring a 
pecuniary interest, they are required to leave the Chamber. 
 

• What are pecuniary interests? 
 

A person’s pecuniary interests are their business interests (for example their 
employment trade, profession, contracts, or any company with which they are 
associated) and wider financial interests they might have (for example trust 
funds, investments, and asset including land and property). 
 

• Do I have any disclosable pecuniary interests? 
 

You have a disclosable pecuniary interest if you, your spouse or civil partner, or a 
person you are living with as a spouse or civil partner have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest set out in the Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct.   
 

• What does having a disclosable pecuniary interest stop me doing? 
 

If you are present at a meeting of your council or authority, of its executive or any 
committee of the executive, or any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or 
joint sub-committee of your authority, and you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest relating to any business that is or will be considered at the meeting, you 
must not : 
 

• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, of if you 
become aware of your disclosable pecuniary interest during the meeting 
participate further in any discussion of the business or,  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting. 
 
These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 
 
 

• Other Pecuniary Interests 
 

Other Pecuniary Interests are also set out in the Members’ Code of Conduct and 
apply only to you as a Member. 
 
If you have an Other Pecuniary Interest in an item of business on the agenda 
then you must disclose that interest and withdraw from the room while that 
business is being considered  
 
 

Page 75



 

• Non-Pecuniary Interests  
 
Non –pecuniary interests are set out in the Council's Code of Conduct and apply  
to you as a Member and also to relevant persons where the decision might 
reasonably be regarded as affecting their wellbeing. 
 
A ‘relevant person’ is your spouse or civil partner, or a person you are living with 
as a spouse or civil partner 
 
If you have a non-pecuniary interest in any business of the Authority and you are 
present at a meeting of the Authority at which the business is considered, you 
must disclose to that meeting the existence and nature of that interest whether or 
not such interest is registered on your Register of Interests or for which you have 
made a pending notification.  

 

Page 76



Ordinary Council 
Terms of Reference 

 
 

General Powers of Council 
 
The Council is the ultimate decision making body of Brentwood Borough Council and the 
principal forum for major political debate. All 37 Councillors who have been elected to represent 
the borough attend the Council meeting. 
  
The Council decides the overall objectives, major policies and financial strategies of the Council. 
It also considers recommendations from the Scrutiny and Regulatory Committees on issues of 
significance. 
  
Through the Constitution, it delegates responsibility for carrying out many of the Borough 
Council’s functions and policies to its committees. It also agrees the membership of the 
committees/sub-committees. 
 
Only the Council will exercise the following functions:- 
 
(a) adopting and  approving changes to the Constitution; 
 
(b) adopting and amending Contract Standing Orders and Financial Regulations; 
 
(c) agreeing and/or amending the terms of reference for committees and any joint 
 committees, deciding on their composition chairmanship and making initial appointments 
 to them; 
 
(d) appointing representatives to outside bodies and consultative groups unless the 
 appointment has been delegated by the Council; 
 
(e) adopting and amending a members’ allowances scheme under Chapter 6; 
 
(f) to elect the Leader and Deputy Leader of the Council; 
 
(g) to designate the Chairs and Vice Chairs of the Council; 
 
(h) adoption of the Code of Conduct for Members; 
 
(i) electoral and ceremonial matters relevant to the Council 
 
(j) changing the name of the area, conferring the title of honorary alderman or freedom of 
 the borough; 
 
(k) setting the Council’s Budget and Council Tax;  
  
(l) approving the making of a virement or payment from the Council’s reserves for values 
 exceeding £200,000; 

 
 

Page 77



 

Page 78


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the previous meeting and Annual Council
	5 Members Allowances 2015/16
	Appendix A

	6 Notice of Motion
	7 Budget 2015/16 Amendment Report
	Appendix A - Proposed Budget Amendments
	Appendix B - Revised Capital Programme

	8 Committees - Appointment of Substitute for Cllr Keeble
	
	

